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STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

1. Was it a clearly erroneous finding by the trial judge
that an attorney's actions and conduct, with respect to the
offering circulars of three bond issuances, were neither fraudulent
nor culpably reckless?

2, Was it a clearly erroneous finding by the trial judge
that an attorney's tax opinion would not be the basis of civil
injunctive relief sought by the Securities and Exchange Commission,
whether such tax opinions were correct or incorrect on the tax law
involved, since the opinions were honestly rendered?

3. Did the trial judge err in holding that the Commission
had to demonstrate either fraud or culpably reckless conduct in
civil injunctive relief proceedings based upon alleged violations
of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 10(b) of
and Rule 10b-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 19342

4, Did the trial judge abuse his discretion in refusing to
enjoin an attorney from future violations of the federal securities
laws, due to the attorney's unblemished work for the 1last five
years, the high quality of his work, and the failure of the Commis-
sion to demonstrate any past violations by him of the federal

securities laws?

vi



STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellee Andrew J. Haswell, Jr. ("Haswell"™) does not
accept the Statement of the Case set forth in the Brief of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“"the Commission"). Such
statement does contain many averments not here contested; indeed,
most of the evidence was either furnished by Haswell to the Com-
mission or consists of Haswell's own sworn testimony. But the
Commission repeatedly draws unwarranted inferences from the evi-
dence and in some instances characterizes the evidence in a manner
unfair to Haswell.

One subject needs to be addressed immediately. The
Commission charges that District Judge Luther Bohanon was hostile
toward and prejudiced against the Commission. It asks that the
case be remanded and reassigned to a different district judge. The
manner in which the Commission presents the record to support its
charge against Judge Bohanon is 1illuminative of 1its careless
approach to the facts concerning Haswell.

1. The Charge Against Judge Bohanon. The Commission first

charges that Judge Bohanon rushed this case to trial four months
after it was filed, granting Haswell's motion for severance and
separate trial over the Commission's "pending requests for dis-
covery,® directing the Commission ®"to proceed to trial hastily"
even though "certain important witnesses could not be located" by

trial date. (SEC Br. 5)



This civil injunction action was filed against three
corporations and six individuals. The corporations are all
defunct. Of the six individuals, the Commission has proceeded
against only three of them, two being attorneys, Haswell and Fred
W. Rausch, Jr., and one corporate officer, Harold T. Pehr. The
three remaining individual defendants, Messrs. Cowell, Capper and
Lancaster, have never been served with process to this date -
indeed, the Commission has never reissued service of process for
them after the U.S. Marshall returned unserved, three days after
the action was filed, the initial summons issued for them. These
three persons are the very three "important witnesses" the Commis-
sion suggests it needed for its case against Haswell and whose
absence Judge Bohanon ignored, the Commission suggests, because of
prejudice against the Commission.

The truth is - and it was well known to both Judge Bohahon
and the Commission - that the Commission had been unsuccessful in
locating Messrs. Cowell, Capper and Lancaster, that it included
these three persons as defendants in this action without real hope
of locating them, that it had spent two years investigating this
matter and building whatever case it might have against Haswell and
was as prepared as it ever would be to litigate the case, that
extensive discovery'had been had by the Commission, that the Com-
mission had settled upon the two attorneys, Haswell and Rausch, as
its targets, and that Haswell's case should be severed from
Rausch's because Rausch had no contact whatsoever with two of the

three bond issues involved in the case against Haswell,



Haswell is an attorney whose professional reputation was
clouded because of the publicity attending the Commission's filing
of this action. (The Commission had distributed press releases
which were published in numerous newspapers). Haswell prepared
himself for trial. Judge Bohanon, mindful of the responsibility of
the Commission not to file such actions without careful investiga-
tion and preparation, aware that the three "important witnesses"®
likely would never the found - particularly so because of cessation
of the Commission's effort to serve them, and sensitive to the many
distinctions between the Commission's cases against Haswell and
Rausch, set Haswell's case for trial four months after it was
filed. This, the Commission suggests, was prejudice.

The Commission fails to mention in its Brief that, prior
to Judge Bohanon's setting the case for trial, the Commission had
advised him by letter of July 1, 1977 that it "has decided to
withdraw its Motion for Preliminary Injunction against defendant

Haswell and proceed directly to the merits"! (A. 70) This letter

was written after the Commission had served interrogatories on
Haswell designed to assist it in determining if Haswell's work
product since June 1972 showed any violation of the federal
securities laws. The Commission had earlier requested Judge
Bohanon by letter of June 10, 1977 (A. 67) not to rule on its
Motion for Preliminary Injunction until it could analyze such work
product of Haswell and had advised Judge Bohanon that if Haswell's
"response to these Interrogatories shows that no subsequent

violations have occurred, the Commission will voluntarily withdraw



its Motion for a Preliminary Injunction and proceed directly to the
merits." (A. 68) Judge Bohanon took the Commission at its word,
after subsequently receiving the Commission's July 1, 1977 letter
(A. 70) stating that "[bJased upon answers provided by defendant
Haswell"™ the Commission withdrew its Motion for Preliminary
Injunction and would "proceed directly to the merits.” He set the
case for trial. Yet, the Commission argues that Judge Bohanon
required it "to proceed to trial hastily.”

The Commission next suggests prejudice of Judge Bohanon
due to his having entered an order requiring five Commission
attorneys who had signed the Commission's post-trial brief to show
cause why they should not be held in contempt of court. The
Commission even expresses to this Court some puzzlement ("[t]he
Court's order was unexplained," SEC Br. 6) but knows full well why
Judge Bohanon issued such order. Despite the usual pretrial pro-
ceedings having been followed, with each side's attorneys having
been required to advise the other side of all documentary evidence
intended to be introduced, the Commission attached to its post-
trial brief a letter it had earlier solicited from the Internal

Revenue Service setting forth expert opinion evidence with respect



to unrevealed hypothetical questions touching tax law issues in
this proceeding.

The IRS letter was objectionable as evidence, being the
worst kind of hearsay evidence not subject to cross-examination.
No effort was made by the Commission to introduce it during the
trial, although its existence was well known to all parties.
Instead, at the conclusion of the trial, the Commission requested
the opportunity to arque its case by written brief and then
attached to its post-trial brief the IRS letter and referred to
such letter in its brief impliedly as expert opinion evidence
supporting its construction of difficult provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code! No wonder Judge Bohanon struck out at such a
prohibited trial practice.

This Court should also consider whether the Commission is
being careless with the facts in stating, in footnote 7 on page 6 of
its Brief, that "[t]he letter had been filed with the court earlier
in connection with the Commissibn's motion for preliminary relief."
This implies the letter was already in evidence. It was not. The
letter was "filed" with the court clerk at the commencement of this
action as part of two boxes of documents that later were, by stipu-
lation between Haswell and the Commission, admitted into evidence
solely for purpose of the hearing on the Commission's motion for a

preliminary injunction' but not admitted for any other purpose.

The Commission's application for preliminary injunctive relief was

subsequently voluntarily withdrawn. (A. 70)



In further pursuit of its suggestion that Judge Bohanon
was prejudiced, the Commission in its Brief comments repeatedly on
Judge Bohanon's findings in his Memorandum Opinion and Order
(A. 831) that *"[i]Jt may be that a more careful attorney [than
Haswell] would have insisted" (A. 836) upon viewing the under-
writer's final form of the offering circular, that the court "is
not inclined to find that Haswell's bond opinions were erroneous
and incorrect"™ (A. 838, that after finding that Haswell had not
violated the securities laws that "even if Haswell had violated the
federal securities laws, the permanent injunction sought by the
Commission should be denied under the circumstances™ (aA. 835) and
that Haswell "has been gravely damaged by the Commission's wrongful
actions in this case." (A. 840) These findings of Judge Bohanon
are presented in the Commission's Brief as suggestions that Judge
Bohanon was skirting his duty to address himself to the issues.

Judge Bohanon did not skirt the issues. He held that
these proceedings require a finding of "either fraudulent conduct
or conduct so reckless that it was an extreme departure from the
standards of ordinary care, conduct which presented a danger of
misleading buyers that was either known to Haswelll or was so
obvious that he must have been aware of it."™ (A. 836) (The
Commission in commenting on this statement by Judge Bohanon of the
law applicable to this case, incorrectly gquotes the judge as
defining the reckless standard to be conduct so reckless that it

was an "extreme fraudulent departure”™ from the standards of



ordinary care. SEC Br. 3. Judge Bohanon's words were "extreme
departure™ not "extreme fraudulent departure.®™ This misquote of
the law applied by Judge Bohanon is repeated in the Commission's
Brief on page 28 and twice on page 32.) The judge found neither
fraudulent nor culpably reckless behaviour on Haswell's part.
(A. 838) The 3judge also examined Haswell's work performed and
conduct during the five years since the work was performed which is
the subject of this action, and found it to be of such high quality
- both legally and ethically - that no injunction should issue in
any event. (A. 840)

In view of these direct statements of the law and the
court's findings, which was all the judge was required to do, it is
submitted that the Commission is stretching too far its prejudice
case against Judge Bohanon because of his reference to what "a more
careful attorney" would have done, because of his desire to avoid
for the MODA bondholders a possible judicial determination that
their interest received on the three MODA bond issues may not have
been tax exempt, because of his statement directed at salvaging the
local reputation of an attorney who may have used poor judgment
years ago but Qhose conduct and work since ﬁhen have been exemplary
and beyond question, and because of his admonishment of a powerful
governmental agency that resorted to prohibited practices in
attempting by sleight-of-hand to bring to his attention what was

inadmissible evidence.



2. Other Controversions of the Commission's Statement of the

The Commission states that the essential facts in this
case are not in dispute. (SEC Br. 10) Largely, this is so. What
is in dispute are the inferences drawn from those facts by the
district judge and the inferences drawn by the Commission. The
Commission attempts to make a fraud case from what is at most a
negligence case.

The issuer of the securities in question was Midwestern
Oklahoma Development Authority ("MODA"), an Oklahoma development
authority organized at the specific recommendation of the Depart-
ment of Defense after the U.S. Air Force closed its base near
Clinton and Burns Flat, Oklahoma. MODA's purpose was to buoy the
local economy by attracting industry through the offer of financing
in part through the issuance of tax exempt industrial bonds.
(A. 832-3)

Haswell's practice prior to this time had been as a muni-
cipal or governmental bond attorney. Typically, the bond issues
with respect to which he rendered legal opinions were backed by the
full faith and credit of the issuing governmental body. Any
offering circulars he may have prepared or reviewed typically were
one or two-page sheets outlining only the most important details of
the bonds. Such sheets were intended for review by the bank bond
departments and the bond underwriters that specialized in municipal

bonds and who made their investment decisions based upon their



knowledge of the creditworthiness of the issuing municipalities and
the expertise of the bond lawyers who opined that all statutory
requirements had been met by the issuing municipalities to bind
their full faith and credit.

Of course, an industrial revenue bond is an entirely
different creature than a full faith and credit municipal bond. 1It
also was a relatively new creature to Oklahoma at the time in
question, a creature being promoted at the time by the U.S.
Congress and the Administration in Washington, D.C. through their
passage of laws favorable to the issuance of this type of security.

Haswell, to his detriment, did not initially appreciate
the difference in the material facts needed to be disclosed for
issuance of MODA's industrial revenue bonds to the general public
and for issuances of general obligation bonds to sophisticated bank
bond departments and municipal bond underwriters. With respect to
the first two MODA bond offerings, those involving Western States
Plastics, 1Inc. ("WSP") and Lee and BHodges, Inc. ("L&H"), it
appears that no offering circular may ever have been prepared.
None was ever delivered by the underwriter to MODA or to Haswell and
none was ever discovered by the Commission or introduced by it into
evidence. Haswell left to the underwriter the responsibility and
did not undertake himself to draft the offering circular for either
of these two issues, and he did not insist upon delivery to MODA of
a proper offering circular - or, indeed, any offering circular -

before issuing his bond opinions.




Whether this conduct was fraudulent or culpably reckless
is one of the issues in this case. To the Commission's detriment,

it distorts the evidence on this issue.

a. The WSP bond issue. In the instance of the first bond

issue, the WSP bonds, at the inception of discussions between MODA
and the underwriter, the underwriter showed to Haswell a sketchy
offering sheet the underwriter had prepared for use as a negotia-
ting document with MODA., (A. 786 and 124) Haswell commented to
the underwriter on certain inaccuracies on the first page of the
draft and did not further concern himself with what changes or
enlargements of disclosures of material facts should be made by the
underwriter. Yet, the Commission characterizes this preliminary
neogtiating document as "the disclosure document®" (SEC Br. 12) and
states, with no evidence to support the assertion, that certain
facts not in this document were likewise not in the "final document
actually distributed to purchasers of the bonds." (SEC Br. 13) No
one knows what was in the "final document" or even if one was
prepared.

More unfairly, the Commission imputes to Haswell
knowledge that the underwriter was going to represent to the buyers
of the WSP bonds that the underwriter's discount was $69,000 rather
than the accurate figure, $210,000. This imputation is made from
the fact that the negotiating document does state on its second
page that the "fiscal fee" is $69,000. (A. 787) Yet, the undisput-

ed evidence is that this document was shown to Haswell at the
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commencement of the initial meeting at which the terms of the
offering were discussed (A, 127) and during which meeting the

underwriter restructured the underwriter's discount to be $210,000.

(A. 127) Haswell was entitled to assume the change would be made by
the underwriter in any final offering circular. The trial judge so
found and also found that this evidence was insufficient to put any
reasonable person on notice that a fraud was about to be perpetrat-
ed by the underwriter. (A. 835)

b. The L&H bond issue. 1In the instance of the second bond

issue, the L&H issue, the evidence is similar. While Haswell did
write to his client, MODA, on May 1, 1972 that he was meeting on May
3 with the underwriter "to finalize the circular® (A. 296), the
circular shown by the underwriter to him at such meeting was
extremely sketchy and incomplete. (A. 279-282) It could hardly have
been intended by the underwriter as its final offering circular:
it was 1labeled "Preliminary Circular™ (A. 279) and referred to
L&H's directors and officers as "Sandy," "Sam,"” "Guy" and "Bert."
(A. 280) Haswell did offer some changes, primarily to the descrip-
tion of the purpose of the offering, but testified that he did not
consider the draft a sales document. (A. 181) Several days after
this May 3 meeting, Haswell wrote to the underwriter on May 8, 1972
and stated, "I must receive from you a copy of the Preliminary
Offering Circular on the Lee & Hodges Bonds and the Final Circular
on the Western States Plastics Bonds.™ (A. 297) He did not receive
such circulars (A. 181) and later issued his bond opinion letter
for the L&H issue without insisting upon delivery to MODA of a

proper offering circular.
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Also at issue with respect to the L&B offering circular
is whether Baswell acted fraudulently or with culpable recklessness
in not insisting that the L&H offering circular being prepared by
the underwriter contain certain information known or imputed to
Haswell. This information was (i) that th2 Small Business Adminis-
tration earlier had declined to loan $65,000 to L&H for working
capital and payment of bills (A. 132-7) , (ii) that a significant
portion of the proceeds from the bonds would be used to pay past due
obligations, including federal taxes (A. 144), (iii) that the bonds
would be sold at a 35 percent discount (A. 295), (iv) that L&H would
use immediately only about $13,000 of the proceeds of the offering
to purchase land or depreciable property (A. 147-158), and (v) that
the purchase of the bonds involved a high degree of risk.

Haswell did not insist upon the inclusion of these items
at the time on May 3, 1972 he viewed the underwriter's initial
"Preliminary Circular."™ However, on May 8 he wrote to the under-
writer (A. 297) stating that he must receive a copy of the under-
writer's preliminary offering circular - presumably the under-
writer's revision of his initial document. He received none and
later issued his bond opinion letter for the L&H issue, opining
only on the tax exempt status of the bonis and the regularity of
MODA's authorization of the issue, without first insisting upon

delivery to MODA of a proper offering circular.

-12-



Again, one of the issues is whether this conduct was
either fraudulent or culpably reckless. The trial judge concluded
it was not (A. 835-6) but hints that he may have felt the conduct to
have been negligent since "[i]t may be that a more careful attorney
would have insisted"™ upon viewing the underwriter's final form of
the offering circular. (A. 836) It is submitted, and argued later
in this Brief, that the correct legal standard is fraud or culpable
recklessness, not negligence.

c. The HII bond issue. In the instance of the third bond

iséue, the Harper Industries, Inc. ("RII") issue, Haswell undertook
to draft, and did draft, the offering circular.

The offering circular is a 28-page document (a. 759)
containing a wealth of information about the bonds, the industrial
company, and the industrial project.

The Commission contends that Haswell's offering circular
"inadequately disclosed" the existence of the underwriter's 30
percent discount and the fact that $250,000 of the bond proceeds
would be used to purchase a patent of unknown value from the
presidént of HII, Mr. Harold T. Pehr. What is being urged here by
the Commission is a question of the placement and emphasis of facts
in the offering circular.

The circular's cover sheet (A. 759) 1is the standard
summary description of the bonds. Page 2 contains an "Introductory

Statement” followed by a more complete description of "The Bonds,*

-13-



which description extends to the bottom of page 4, where a section
entitled "Tax Exemption" is placed. On page 5 there commences a
description of "The Project"™ which includes a subsection entitled
"General” followed by "Use of Bond Proceeds."™ On page S5 appears the
following statements:

"The Bonds are being issued to provide funds requir-

ed for acquisition by the Authority of tool and die

shop equipment and machine tools . . . [and] of U.S.

patent number 3,587,944 . . ." (emphasis —added)
(A, 763)

Immediately underneath the above statement appears the

following:

"USE OF BOND PROCEEDS

SERIES 1972 A

Item Amount

Tool and Die Shop Equipment and
Machine Tools and Patent
$#3,587,944* $300,280

Capitalization of portion of first
two years interest on Series
1972 A and Series 1972B

Bonds 186,220
Bond Discount 208,500
$695,000

*Includes used equipment appraised by Soles
Machinery Company, Ransas City, Missouri, which will
remain in Kansas City. Appraisal value $50,280.00 -
replacement cost.™ (A. 763)

SERIES 1972 B

Item Amount
* * *® *
Bond Discount 181,500
$605,000"

-14-



Immediately thereafter, on page 7, appears a copy of the
U.S. Patent 3,587,944 and on page 8 appears a section "Certain
Provisions of the Lease Agreement”™ in which the following state-
ments are made:

"$300,280 of the proceeds of the Series 1972 A Bonds
shall be disbursed . . . for the purpose of acquir-
ing tool and die shop equipment and machine tools
and patent number 3,587,944. . . . The patent to be
acquired by the Authority was acquired by Clyde M.
Pool, d/b/a Midstates Tool & Mold Company f£from
Harold T. Pehr, the inventor. The acquisition price
paid by the Authority to the Company will be paid to
Clyde M. Pool . . . who will pay $30,000 as down
payment on the patent to Mr. Pehr. Mr. Pehr will
receive a $220,000 note from Clyde M. Pool . . . for
the balance of the purchase price.”
(A. 766) (Emphasis added)

On page 22 of the offering circular appears a list of
management which identifies Harold T. Pehr as chairman, president
and treasurer of HII and Clyde M. Pool as vice president of BII.
(A. 780 and 782)

As for the "inadequate disclosure* of the underwriter's
30 percent'discount, the "Use of Proceeds" section clearly identi-
fies the existence and the correct amount of the discount, although
admittedly the statement "these bonds are being sold at a 30%
underwriter's discount," or words to such effect, never appear in
the offering circular.

As for the "inadequate disclosure® of the §250,000
purchase of the patent from Mr. Pehr, an HII insider and control-

ling person, the amount is discernible, both from the footnote
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under the table in the "Use of Bond Proceeds™ section and from the
statement on page 8 of the offering circular that Mr. Pehr will
receive for the patent a $30,000 down payment plus a $220,000 note.
Admittedly, Mr. Pehr is not identified until page 22 as a company
insider and controlling person.

The Commission also questions Haswell's inclusion in the
BII offering circular of company projections, unverified by him,
for annual production and sales of disposable salt and pepper
shakers, which ranges from 300 million shakers in the year follow-
ing the offering, 1973, to over 3 billion shakers in 1982, when
Raswell knew that HII was not yet in production. The circular also
contained the statement, "The management team of Harper Industries
has the capability to do all its own engineering and design work,

and start national sales distribution immediately." (A. 780)

Perhaps Haswell was negligent in including in the offer-
ing circular these projections, which were furnished to him by HII
and not checked by him for reasonableness. But as for Haswell's
statement concerning the capability of HII to do its own engineer-
ing and design work and start national sales immediately, the
evidence supports this statement.

The Commission's witness, Cleetus T. Groner, testified he
was a design engineer with an impressive background (A. 232), went

to work for HII immediately after the HII bonds were sold
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(A. 233), engineered and designed the salt and pepper shaker
production unit (A, 233-7), and left HII less than six months
later, on March 1, 1973 (A, 233) when HII was in the process of
assembling the production line (A. 237). He alsc testified that
although the production line was not yet in production when he
left, it would have made it. (A. 237)

Finally, Mr. Groner testified that BII's salt and pepper
shaker, a throw-away plastic shaker intended to replace the paper
shakers used by airlines, hamburger stands and the like, had been
market tested and had met with "lots of enthusiasm"™ and general
acceptance. (A. 238)

The Commission claims that Haswell prepared the HII
offering circular without first having received or reviewed any
actual or pro forma financial statements for HEII. This is false.
Pages 25 and 26 of the HII offering circular (A, 759) contain a
Projected Statement of Annual 1Income for HII, which statement
indicates the wviability of HII's enterprise. Page 27 of the
offering circular (R. 513) is a certified public accountant’s
statement as to the reasonableness of the projections for HII's
operation.

To summarize the true merits of the Commission's case
against the HII offering circular prepared by Haswell, the circular

- though crammed with information - should have prominently
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spotlighted the risks involved in a "Risk Pactors" section immed-
iately after the cover page. Haswell's failure to do this may have
involved poor judgmeht or his own inexpertise but was not fraudu-
lent or culpably reckless conduct. The trial judge found no fraud
or culpably reckless conduct, and the evidence supports this
finding.

d. Haswell's Tax Opinions. A defense of Baswell's tax

opinions appears later in the legal argument section of this Brief.
However, it must here be noted that there is wide disparity of
opinion between the Commission and Haswell concerning (i) the
proper meaning of the term "proceeds™ as it is employed in 26 U.S.C.
103(b) (6) (A) and (ii) what type of expenditures qualify for the
"substantially all®™ test set forth in the statute for the use of
proceeds of an issue.

' If the Commission's interpretation of the statute is
correct, it would appear that none of the bondholders' interest
received from the WSP, L&H and HII bonds was exempt from federal
income taxation and that Haswell's bond opinions were incorrect.
If Baswell's interpretation of the statute is correct, the bond-
holders' interest received was exempt from, federal income taxation
and his bond opinions were correct. Even if Haswell's bond
opinions were incorrect but honestly rendered, this still does not
make out a case for civil injunctive relief for fraud or culpably

reckless conduct as charged by the Commission.
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The Commission's recitation of facts under its section
*Statement of the Case -~ Haswell's tax opinions"™ (SEC Br. 23) is
most inflammatory. The Commission concludes its recitation of
facts with the statement, "But he issued false opinions despite his
knowledge.” 1If Haswell agreed with the Commission's interpretation
of the law, this would be a fair statement. But he does not agree.
The Commission is wrong on the tax law involved, and the statement
is most unfair.

Without going into the legal argument at this time, it
should here be noted that Baswell and the Commission disagree in
three respects concerning the proper interpretation of 26 U.S.C.
103(b) (6) (A), all of which differences are briefed later herein
under "Argument": (i) the meaning of the word "proceeds,"” to which
a test is applied concerning how substantially all of the "pro-
ceeds" are to be used, (ii) whether certain escrowed interest
payments can be deemed as qualifying uses of bond proceeds, and
(iii) whether Haswell's reliance upon a covenant rather than a
construction fund satisfied the statutory requirement concerning
the use of the proceeds of one of the bond issuances.

There 1is sharp difference between BHaswell's and the
Commission's interpretation of the law in these three respects.
The Commission and Haswell do agree that approximately 90 percent
of the "proceeds”™ (whatever that means) must be “"used" (whatever

that means) for certain qualifying ends. 1In footnote 49 to the
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Commission's Brief (SEC Br. 27), the Commission sets forth a table
based upon its interpretation of the tax 1laws, which table
indicates that only somewhere between a low of 7 percent and a high
of 71 percent of the bond proceeds were used for purposes qualify-
ing the interest on the bonds as exempt from federal income
taxation.

It should here be noted that Haswell's interpretation of
26 U.S.C. 103(b) (6) (A) led him to conclude, at the time he rendered
the WSP, L&H and HII-B tax opinions, that the bond proceeds would be

used in a manner consistent with statutory requirements, as

follows:
WSP L&H HII-B
Face amount $700,000 $200,000 $605,000
Less bond discount 210,000 70,000 181,500
Less Attorney fees 12,459 6,750 -
Less trustee fees 1,400 700 2,600
Less trustee attorney fees 1,930 400 -
Proceeds $474,211 $122,150 $420,900
Uses qualifying for
"substantially all" test:
Equipment purchases $339,187 $ 13,318 $384,600
Escrowed interest 86,025 14,000 36,300
Covenanted purchases - 94,832 -
§425,212 $122,150 $420,900
Percent of Proceeds 90% 100% 100%
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At trial, Haswell testified as to the legal basis for his
tax opinions. The Commission's tax argument was based primarily
upon an expert opinion letter it had earlier solicited from the
Commissioner of 1Internal Revenue, which 1letter had never been
offered or received into evidence but which was attached to the
Commission's post—-trial brief. The letter was, in fact, obviously
inadmissible as expert opinion evidence since (i) it addressed
itself to hypothetical gquestions set forth in a never-revealed
letter from the Commission to the I.R.S. and (ii) it based some of
its conclusions upon Treasury regulations not only neither proposed
nor adopted at the time Haswell had rendered his three tax opinions
but in one instance directly reversing the effect of proposed
regulations existing at the time Haswell rendered his opinions.

The trial judge felt it was not necessary to rule dir-
ectly on the highly technical points of the tax law involved, since
(i) the nature of this proceeding is a civil injunction action
based upon alleged violations of the federal securities law, (ii)
since the alleged securities law violations require a finding of
conduct either fraudulent or culpably negligent, and (iii) since
Haswell's tax opinions were "carefully considered opinions and,
whether right or wrong, were made in good faith" and "neither

negligently nor recklessly reached." (A. 838)
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SUMMARY OF AGRUMENT

Violations of Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, and violations of Section
17(a) and the Securities Act of 1933 both require findings of
scienter, that is, fraudulent or recklessly culpably conduct. The
evidence supports the trial judge's finding that scienter was not
present.

The trial Jjudge did not commit reversible error in
failing to make a formal finding whether Haswell's tax opinions
were correct or incorrect. Justice would not be served by such a
finding, particularly in view of the trial judge's conclusion that
even if they were incorrect, they were carefully and honestly
rendered and did not provide the proper basis for the injunctive
relief sought by the Commission.

The evidence supports the trial judge's exercise of
discretion in refusing to grant the injunctive relief sought by the

Commission. At the least, no abus2 of discretion is shown.

ARGUMENT

I. THE TRIAL JUDGE WAS NOT ERRONEOUS IN HOLDING THAT
HASWELL DID NOT VIOLATE, NOR AID AND ABET VIOLATIONS
OF, THE ANTI-FRAUD PROVISIONS OF THE FEDERAL
SECURITIES LAWS.

It is submitted that the Statement of the Case set forth
earlier in this Brief demonstrates that Haswell's actions with

respect to the three bond issues did not involve scienter, i.e.,
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that he was not guilty of fraudulent conduct, and that the trial
judge also was Jjustified in concluding that such conduct was not
culpably reckless.

Haswell may have exercis=d poor judgment. 1In failing to
insist upon viewing the underwriter's final offering circulars for
the WSP and L&H bond offerings before rendering his bond opinions,
Haswell admittedly did not exhibit that degree of care that, as the
trial judge stated, "a more careful attorney would have insisted
upon.” (a. 836) It should be stressed that Haswell never
undertook to prepare these two circulars. The underwriter did.
HAswell did not represent the underwriter.

As for the HII offering circular, which was prepared by
Haswell, the Commission finds fault in Haswell's placement and
emphasis of material. This is far from being fraudulent or
culpably reckless conduct.

The tax opinions are challenged by the Commission not
only as being wrong on the tax law questions involved but as being
rendered with Kknowledge of the wrongness, 1i.e., given with
scienter. The trial judge found, however, that the opinions were
"carefully considered opinions and, right or wrong, were made in
good faith" and "were neither negligently nor recklessly reached."
(A. 838)

In essence, the worst characterization that the trial

judge may have made of Haswell's conduct, other than the three bond
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opinions, is negligence. And not even negligence was found to be
involved in rendering the bond opinions. Placed sharply in issue
is the question: does negligence alone suffice for injunctive

relief by the Commission?

A. COMMISSION INJUNCTIVE RELIEF UNDER SECTION 10(b) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT AND RULE 10b-5 THEREUNDER
REQUIRES A FINDING OF SCIENTER, THAT IS, FRAUDULENT OR
RECRKLESSLY CULPABLE CONDUCT.

On March 30, 1976, the Supreme Court held in Ernst &
Ernst v. Hochfelder, 425 U.S. 185, that scienter on the part of the
defendants was required for the plaintiffs to prevail in a private
action for damages under Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 of the 1934
Act. The Supreme Court defined scienter as "a mental state
embracing intent to deceive, manipulate or defraud." 425 U.S. 185,
at 193 n. 12. The opinion relies solely upon the wording of the
statute and the rule and their 1legislative or administrative
histories. The Supreme Court refused to examine the policy behind
the statute in reaching its holding. Id. at 214 n. 33. The Supreme
Court first focused upon the words "manipulative,"™ "device," and
"contrivance"™ which are contained in Section 10(b), and emphasized
that these terms "make unmistakable a congressional intent to
proscribe a type of conduct quite different from negligence." 1I4.
at 199.

The Supreme Court also rested its opinion upon an ana-

lysis of legislative history. It emphasized that the 1933 and 1934
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Acts constitute interrelated components of the federal securities
regulation scheme, and when the Congress intended to create civil
liability under these Acts for negligence or innocent mistake, it
did so with clear specificity. Id. at 207-208. The Supreme Court
also examined the language and administrative history of Rule 10b-5
and reasoned that the scope of the rule cannot exceed the power
granted by the Congress under Section 10(b).

Whether or not the Supreme Court's holding in Hochfelder
requiring scienter is dispositive in Commission injunctive pro-
ceedings under Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 has been a question
since Hochfelder was handed down. The Supreme Court was careful to
state that the question involved was, whether a private cause of
action for damages will lie in the absence of scienter, and the

Supreme Court stated unequivocally in a footnote:

Since this case concerns an action for damages we

also need not consider the gquestion whether scienter

is a necessary element in an action for injunctive

relief under Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5. 1Id, at

193 n., 12,

The holding in Hochfelder was a severe blow to the "10b-5
class-action bar" as well as to the Commission. One can hardly
blame the Commission for attempting to wring as much as it can from
the sop set forth in footnote 12 on page 193 of the opinion. There
are post-Hochfelder decisions of both circuit and district courts

that seem to hold that a finding of negligence is sufficient for a
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Commission injunctive action based upon alleged violations of this
statute and rule. To the extent that such decisions have so held,
it is submitted that they are patently wrong.

An injunctive proceeding is based upon there being a past
violation, a present violation or a future likely violation of one
of the sections of the federal securities laws. In the instance of
Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 of the 1934 Act, BHochfelder settled
one thing: there was "a congressional intent to proscribe a type of
conduct quite different from negligence.” 1d. at 199. That type of
conduct involves scienter, conduct that is either deemed to be
fraudulent or so reckless that under traditional concepts a finding
of fraud may be imputed. The burning question is, can it be that
the Congress intended one thing for a private cause of action and
another thing for injunctive proceedings?

It is submitted that this simple approach to this issue
is unassailable. The Supreme Court's findings that scienter is
required in a civil action brought under this section and rule is
based upon its finding of a congressional intent extracted from the
very words of the statute and upon the Supreme Court's analysis of
the legislative history behind the adoption of the 1933 and 1934
Acts. If the Congress_had intended that the words of Section 10(b)
of the 1934 Act were to mean different things in different
contexts, it should have been specific in so providing. It did not,

and the words must have the same meanings in all contexts.
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The Commission, 1in 1its Brief, cited several pre-
Hochfelder cases, apparently to demonstrate that the great weight
of authority prior to Hochfelder sustained the granting of injunc-
tions to the Commission upon a finding of mere negligence on the
part of the defendants. Among such cited cases was this Circuit's
case, S.E.C. v. Pearson, 426 F.2d 1339 (10th Cir. 1970).
Obviously, the line of authority of all such cases was placed in
doubt by Hochfelder.

Subsequent to Hochfelder there have been several federal
district court and federal circuit court opinions which have
examined with some care the requirement of scienter in Commission
injunctive actions under Section 10(b) and Rule 1l0b-5. Despite
dicta with respect to a lack of a scienter requirement in certain of
these judicial decisions, not one court has in fact granted the
Commission an injunction in the absence of scienter on the part of
the defendants.

The first judicial opinion after Bochfelder to deal in
any depth with the question of scienter in Commission injunctive
actions based upon Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 was S.E.C. V.

Bausch & Lomb, Inc., 420 PF. Supp. 1226 (S.D.N.Y. 1976), affim on

other grounds, CCH Fed. Sec. L. Rep. Para. 36,186 (2d Cir. 1977).

In Bausch the district judge concluded that the Supreme Court's
reasoning in Hochfelder compels a scienter requirement in a suit
for injunctive relief brought by the Commission. District Judge

Ward stated as follows:
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The Supreme Court found, "the language and history
of section 10(b) dispositive.® . . . These stand at
least as conclusively when the SEC is plaintiff,
The private damage action brought under this section
is a creation of the courts. . . . If the "language
and history of section 10(b) [are]) dispositive® as
to the scienter question in private actions, must
they not also be so in "SEC suits for injunctions
[which] are 'creatures of statute'.™ . . . Argument
drawing upon the words of section 10(b) and the
history, 1legislative and administrative, of both
section 10(b) and rule 10b-5 applies equally to
private suits and actions brought by the Commission.
Id. at 1240-41.

Soon after Bausch the U.S. Court of Appeals for the First

Circuit decided S.E.C. v. World Radio Mission, Inc., 544 F. 24 535

(lst Cir. 1976). Here the Commission had sought to enjoin a relig-
ious organization and its 1leader from selling interest bearing
notes, in some cases together with a bonus acre of land, to the
public under thé guise of a bona fide investment. The district
court had refused to grant the injunction, but the First Circuit
reversed. Judge Aldrich, writing for the court, appeared to reject
any requirement of scienter in a Commission injunctive action under
Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5. Such apparent holding, however, is
undercut by the extended treatment which the Court of Appeals
accorded to the defendants' misrepresentations and omissions of

significant economic facts:
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[D]efendants make the contention that there was no
intent to deceive. It is true that in the court
below, perhaps moved by deference toward an admitted
religious organization, plaintiff did not press a
claim of intent to deceive, taking the position that
it was immaterial. Bad this been a concession of
the factual issue, it might be thought over-
generous. Assuming that defendants' religious
motives and purposes were of the highest, it is
nonetheless difficult to think they believed that
every thing they said was accurate. . . . Confidence
that they would be financially successful
eventually, or even that no investor would lose
money, is in no way eguivalent to honesty as to
particular representations. Id. at 539 (emphasis
added)

Here the Circuit Court had a dilemma. It wanted to stop a
clear violation of the securities laws, but it did not want to brand
an accepted religious organzation as a collection of crooks. Had
the same misrepresentations and omissions been disseminated by a

business organization, they would undoubtedly had elicited findings

of scienter by the First Circuit. It is submitted that World Radio
Mission is poor authority for the position taken by the Commission
that negligence alone suffices in a Commission injunctive
proceeding based upon violations of Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 of
the 1934 Act.

The next decision focusing upon this problem was S.E.C.
v. Geotek, 426 F. Supp. 715 (N.D. Cal. 1976). Here the district
court, without undertaking to analyze whether scienter or negli-
gence is the proper standard in Commission injunctive relief
actions under Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5, held that this was an

open legal question and concluded that "[f]or the purposes of this

- -29-



action, however, we have decided to apply the strict standard of
negligence (i.e., ordinary care or due diligence) as to all SEC
claims against defendants.™ 1Id. at 726. The district court them
purportedly proceeded to apply this negligence standard to the
facts of the case before it. After finding against the principal
defendants on certain charges and in their favor with respect to
other charges, the district court then refused to enjoin the
principal defendants in the absence of a finding of scienter:

With respect to the several charges as to which the

Court has found against the [principal] defendants,

the Court has further found that the misrepresenta-

tions and/or omissions were made by those

defendants, not merely negligently due to their

failure to use ordinary care, but deliberately and

with intent to deceive - i.e., "scienter”™ within the

meaning of Ernst & Ernst v. Hochfelder . . . . Id.
at 729 (emphasis added)

On February 24, 1977 the U.S. District Court for the

Eastern District of Virginia decided S.E.C. v. American Realty

Trust, CCH Fed. Sec. L. Rep., 1976-77 Transfer Binder, para.
95,913. Here, Chief Judge Kellam stated that the Supreme Court's
decision to require scienter in Hochfelder was dispositive of the
case at bar:

If the language and history of 10(b) is dispositive
as to a scienter requirement in private actions, it
must also be so for SEC enforcement actions, since
such suits are creatures of statute rather than
implied rights of action. Only policy considera-
tions which have traditionally been applied to
distinguish the ¢two Kkinds of cases . . . could
support a contrary result, but the Supreme Court in
Hochfelder found no reason to even examine such
considerations, since in its opinion the 1language
and history of the Act were dispositive. Id., at
91,440.
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Chief Judge Rellam cited Bausch with approval, applied a
scienter standard to the facts before it and found that the
defendants "did not possess the requisite intent to deceive,

manipulate or defraud.®” 1Id.

In S.E.C. v. E. L. Aaron & Co., Inc., CCE Fed. Sec. L.
Rep. para. 96,043 (S.D.N.Y. 1977), the U. S. District Court for the
Southern District of New York granted injunctions in a Commission
action brought under Sections 17(a) of the 1933 Act, Section 10(b)
of the 1934 Act, and Section 5 of the 1933 Act. Judge Gagliardi,
after stating that a legal standard of negligence is all that is
required under Sections 10(b) and 17(a), significantly made a
specific finding of scienter on the part of the defendant. With
respect to Section 5 of the 1933 Act, Judge Gagliardi also
specifically found that the defendants acted with knowledge or
reckless disregard of the illegality of the arrangement in guestion
and that this was sufficient to establish scienter. Id. at 91,686.

To summarize the foregoing development of post-Hochfelder
case law with respect to Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 under the 1934
Act, the courts have either (i) held that scienter or culpably
reckless conduct is the proper legal standard vfor Commission
injunctive relief actions or (ii) while stating that negligence is
a sufficient standard have nevertheless found scienter or culpably
reckless conduct to be present in each instance in which injunctive

relief was granted.
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In Bausch the court clearly stated that scienter is the
proper legal standard and buttressed this decision with appropriate

legal reasoning. In World Radio Mission, the court appeared to

reject a scienter requirement but went to great lengths to describe
and analyze an "intent to deceive" on the part of the defendants.
In Geotek, the court assumed, without deciding, the propriety of
establishing a standard of negligence but only enjoined where it

found scienter. 1In American Realty Trust, the court followed the

reasoning set forth in Bausch and clearly required scienter to be a
necessary element in an action for injunctive relief. 1In Aaron,
the court choose a legal standard of negligence but before granting
the injunction made a specific finding that scienter was present.
It is submitted that there is no better reasoned opinion
than District Judge'Ward's opinion in Bausch. Since the Supreme
Court found the language and legislative history of Section 10(b)
dispositive in a civil damages action, such language and legis-
lative history must stand equally as dispositive when the Commis-
sion is the plaintiff in an injunctive action which is a creature of

statute,

B. COMMISSION INJUNCTIVE RELIEF UNDER SECTION 17(a) OF THE
1933 ACT REQUIRES A FINDING OF SCIENTER, THAT IS,
FRAUDULENT OR RECRLESSLY CULPABLE CONDUCT.

The Supreme Court has not yet ruled on the question of

whether a finding of scienter is a prerequisite to Commission
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injunctive relief in actions bottoming upon Section 17(a) of the
1933 Act. BHochfelder is confined to Sectioﬁ 10(b) of the 1934 Act
and Rule 10b-5 thereunder.

It will shortly be demonstrated that the language and
legislative history of Section 17(a) of the 1933 Act present an
even more compelling case for a necessity of scienter than does the
language and legislative history of Section 10(b) of the 1934 Act.
However, a few remarks are first in order to demonstrate the
weakness of the argument advanced by the Commission in support of
its theory that negligence alone suffices for Section 1l7(a)
injunctive relief proceedings.

The Commission primarily relies upon a reference to a
statement made by Justice Powell in Hochfelder discussing con-
tentions of the Commission with respect to subsections (b) and (c)
of Rule 10b-5, which subsections, the Commission points out, are
drafted in language virtually identical to subsections (2) and (3)
of Section 1l7(a). The Commission argues that the statement of
Justice Powell Taffirmatively supports the proposition that
subsections (2) and (3) of Section 17(a) are violated by negligent
conduct." (SEC Br. 54-5) Nothing could be farther from the truth.

Justice Powell referred to the contentions of the Com-

mission as contentions. He then stated that "viewed in isolation”

the language "arguable . . . could be read" as proscribing certain

conduct that has the effect of defrauding investers whether the
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wrong-doing was intentional or not. 425 U.S. 185 at 212. Justice
Powell immediately proceeded to state that such a reading could not
be harmonized with the administrative history of Rule 10b-5 but,
more importantly, Justice Powell pointed out that the rulemaking
power of the Commission is not the power to make law but is only the
power to adopt regulations to carry into effect the will of the
Congress as expressed by a statute. Justice Powell, referring to
his earlier statements that both the language and the legislative
history of Section 1l0(b) evidenced a congressional intent to
require scienter, held that the Commission, through a rule, could
not extend the scope of the statute to negligent conduct. Id. at
212-214.

The Commission has misread Justice Powell's language. It
has failed to give proper respect to Justice Powell's reference to
this line of argument as a Commission contention and his precatory
comments such as "viewed in isolation," "arguably,” and "could be
read."

This same error in reasoning was picked up by the Court

of Appeals for the Second Circuit in S.E.C. v. Coven, CCH Fed. Sec.

L. Rep. para. 96,462 (1978), which case is cited with approval by
the Commission in its Brief. Coven is also subject to attack on the
ground that, even through the Second Circuit held that negligence
is an appropriate standard for Commission injunction relief in an
action based upon a violation of Section 17(a), the court
specifically found that the conduct of the enjoined defendant

involved scienter. As stated that Judge Mansfield:

-34-~



After the June 12 meeting, which clearly put
appellant on notice that a question existed as to
whether 3,000,000 shares had been sold, he promptly
wrote a letter falsely stating that 3,075,000 shares
had been purchased without having any basis for this
representation. This action not only was negligent
for purposes of Section 17(a), but also amounted to
the kind of "reckless disregard" we have recently
held sufficient to support a finding of scienter in
a private damage action under Section 10(b) of the
1934 Act. CCH Fed. Sec. L. Rep. at 93,680-1.

The Commission also cites with approval the holding in

wWorld Radio Mission, which holding has already been discussed above

in the argument with respect to Section 10(b) of the 1934 Act. As

earlier noted, even though Judge Aldrich in World Radio Mission
appeared to reject any requirement of scienter, he made findings of
fact strongly suggesting scienter but he refrained from charac-
terizing the acts as fraudulent apparently because the defendant
was a religious organization.

The Commission also relies upon a 1966 case decided by
the Seventh Circuit, S.E.C. v. Van Horn, 371 F.2d 18l1. It was held
in Van Horn that under Section 17(a) of the 1933 Act, proof of
scienter or fraudulent intent is not essential in a suit for
injunctive relief. The decision was based upon approval of the
rationale as to certain "policy considerations™ employed in S.E.C.

v. Capital Gains Research Bureau, 375 U.S. 180 (1963), an injunc-

tive action brought under the Investment Advisors Act of 1940, and
upon a specific finding that the legislative history of the 1933
Act indicated that no requirement of an intent to defraud was

necessary for Commission injunction actions.
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The reference in Van Horn to the legislative history of

the 1933 Act is interesting. The Seventh Circuit stated:

In view of the plain language employed by Congress,
it would be presumptous on our part to hold that the
applicability of the clauses involved is dependant
on intent to defraud. Not only did Congress fail to
include such a requirement, but legislative history
indicates that it did so deliberately. An earlier
version of the Securities Act of 1933 passed by the
Senate would have required that the Commission prove
wilfulness and "intent to defraud” even for an
injunction. The House version contained no such
requirement. In conferance, the House version of
Sec. 17(a) was adopted and became the law. 371 F.2d
181 at 185,

As will next be shown, Senior Judge Major, in Van Horn, misread the

legislative history of the 1933 Act.

a. Legislative history of Section 17(a) of the 1933 Act. 1In

the hearings on the Roosevelt Administration's bill preceding
enactment of the Securities Act of 1933, which hearings were held
on March 31, 1933 before the Committee on Interstate and Foreign
Commerce, House of Representatives, 734 Congress, lst Session, two
witnesses who had framed and drafted the proposed 1legislation
appeared before the Committee. They were Mr. Buston Thompson, a
former member of the Federal Trade Commission who was introduced by
Chairman Sam Rayburn as a man "who has had quite a lot to do with

the framing of this bill,"™ (Hearings on H.R. 9314 Before the House

Committee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce, 73d Cong., lst Sess.

(1933), p. 1) and Mr. Ollie M. Butler, Foreign Service Divisionm,

Department of Commerce, who qualified himself in his statement set

forth below.
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In the original bill, what now appears in the 1933 Act as Section
17(a) and Section 20 (the civil injunction and criminal prosecution
provision) were placed together in one section, Section 13. The
following testimony, with reference to Section 13 of the original
bill, is made with reference to what is today's Sections 17(a) and
20 of the 1933 Act.
The opening statement was made by Mr. Huston Thompson.

Mr. Thompson (While reciting earlier efforts to pass similar

legislation in earlier Congresses and in referring

to the third attempt, which was a bill introduced in
an earlier Congress by Rep. Sabath)

Then we had the Sabath bill - Cong. Sabath's bill.
That was a fraud bill. We cover the subject of
fraud in this bill of ours. (Id., p. 11)

* * * * * * *

There are several other points which I want to bring
up.

We have the fraud section. Let me read briefly a
paragraph from the fraud clause, section 13, page
24;

"Section 13. That it shall be unlawful for any
person . . . in any interstate sale, promotion,
negotiation, advertisement or distribution of any
securities defined by this Act willfully to employ
any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud or to
obtain money or property by means of any false pre-
tense, representation or promise, or to engage in
any transaction, practice or course of dealing
relating to the interstate purchase or sale of any
securities which operates or would operate as a
fraud upon the purchaser . . .. Whenever it shall
appear to the Commission that the practice investi-
gated constitutes a fraud or an attempt to defraud
under the provisions of this section (13) it shall
transmit such evidence as may be available concern-
ing the transaction or facts complained of to the
Attorney General, who may in his discretion bring an
action . . . to enjoin the continuance of such
practices or transactions and/or may institute the
necessary criminal proceedings . . . under this Act."
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The Chairman

Mr. Thompson

Mr. Wolverton

Mr. Thompson

Mr. Wolverton

In substance, that is a combination of, I would say,
the Denison bill and the Sabath bill on that
subject, and I ask you to keep in mind when you go
into the bill that always in the background there is
this fraud section. (I1d., p. 13)

* * * * * * *

Will you proceed, Mr. Thompson?

Section 13 covers fraud. We have already discussed
that.

Section 14 covers the violation of State laws.
(1d., p. 32 and 33)

* L * * * * *

(A member of the Committee).

Is there not any general jurisdiction or power in
the FPTC to stop unfair practices?

Yes; there Iis. But you have overlooked the fact
that if a fraud is committed, there is a fraud
section in this bill that I would like to come back
to. Let us get that, because that is very important
in line with your gquestion. Let us go back to
Section 13. You will recall that I asked you to
keep that in mind all the way through this hearing.

* * * * * * *

The clause referred to by you does give some measure
of help it is true - how much, I am not prepared to
say. Theoretically it gives some measure of relief
to a person who has suffered by reason of fraud.
(Id., p. 54).

The next person to appear before the Committee and make a

statement was Mr. Ollie M. Butler, Foreign Service Division,

Department of Commerce.
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Mr. Butler I have been associated daily with the drafting of
this bill for some months past. I have seen it grow
from a skeleton outline to a full-bodied bill. I
have seen clauses put in and taken out and I know
the reasons for most of the changes, and feel that I
am perhaps peculiarly familiar with the various
provisions.

* * * ® * * *

Sections 13 and 14 are auxiliary to this main body
of the bill (Sections 1 through 12) and were
inserted for two reasons: First, because it has
been necessary to include exemptions from the main
body of the bill in order to facilitate normal and
legitimate business transactions. Every time that
an exemption is made to this main provision it opens
a way for evasion, and it is almost impossible to
insert an exception without it being used by the
fraudulent promotor as a vehicle for the evasion of
that provision.

Therefore, Section 13, the fraud section, was added

to control those who managed to evade the main
provisions of the law. (I4., p. 116)

The bill with respect to which the above testimony was
given was replaced by a clean bill substantially similar to it for
purposes of the legislative history of interest to us. One inter-
esting difference is that while the original bill did not state
that one of its purposes was to prevent fraud in the interstate sale
of securities, the reported bill and the bill approved by the
conference committee (which became the Securities Act of 1933) was
amended to provide that it was:

An Act to provide full and fair disclosure of the

character of securities sold in interstate and

foreign commerce and through the mails, and to
prevent frauds in the sale thereof, and for other

purposes. (Preamble of the Securities Act of 1933)
(Emphasis added)
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Of particular interest is that the legislation's original
Section 13 (with respect to which the above testimony was directed)
was broken into two sections, today's Sections 17 and 20, and that
Section 17 was 1labeled by the draftors to carry the heading

"Fraudulent Interstate Transactions,™ the only section in the 1933

Act labeled with the word fraud and the only section in the 1933 Act
in which the word "fraud" appears.

The above legislative history is exceptionally strong
evidence of the congressional intent with respect to Section 17(a)
of the 1933 Act. The Congress had fraud in mind when it drafted and
enacted Section 17(a) of the 1933 Act.

It was so held by the District Court of the Eastern

District of Virginia earlier this year in S.E.C. v American Realty

Trust, supra, which court also stated that the Commission, in a

civil injunction action, must either prove scienter or the kind of

recklessness that is equivalent to willful fraud. 1In accord is the

Southern District of New York in S.E.C. v. Bausch & Lomb, supra, and
the Northern District of Illinois in S.E.C. v. Cenco, CCH Sec. L.

Rep. para. 96,133 (1977).

II. THE TRIAL JUDGE DID NOT COMMIT REVERSIBLE ERROR IN
FAILING TO MARE A FORMAL FINDING WHETHER HASWELL'S TAX
OPINIONS WERE CORRECT OR INCORRECT IN VIEW OF THE TRIAL
JUDGE'S CONCLUSION THAT, EVEN IP THEY WERE INCORRECT,
THEY WERE CAREFULLY AND HONESTLY RENDERED AND DID NOT
PROVIDE THE PROPER BASIS FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEP.

a. Haswell's tax opinions were correct.

The first difference between the Commission's and
Haswell's interpretations of the language of 26 U.S5.C. 103(b) (6) (A)

is the meaning of the word "proceeds™ as it appears as follows:
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Paragraph (1) shall not apply to any obligation
issued as part of an issue the aggregate authorized
face amount of which is $1,000,000 or 1less and
substantially all of the proceeds of which are to be
used . . .. (Emphasis added)

The Commission interprets "proceeds" to mean the same thing as
"face amount™ despite the fact that the two terms both refer to the
word "issue™ in the same sentence. Tax laws are tightly drafted.
It makes no sense to suppose, as the Commission does, that our tax
law drafters intended that "the face amount of an issue" shall mean
the same thing as "the proceeds of an issue"™ when the two terms
appear in the same clause of a single sentence of the Internal
Revenue Code. The "proceeds of an issue"™ means the proceeds
received by the issuer after the offering expenses are paid. This
is what the issuer gets, and it is this net proceeds that the issuer
must be careful to devote "substantially all" of to certain ends if
the interest on the bonds is to be exempt from federal income
taxation.

What are the expenses of an issue? At the time Haswell
wrote his three tax opinion letters in question, the example under
then proposed (and made effective August 2, 1972) Treasury Regula-
tion 1.103-8(a) (5) (relating to tax exempt bonds to finance certain
exempt facilities) stated in part:

"The arrangement provides that (1) A will issue

bonds the proceeds of which (after deducting bond

election <costs, <costs of publishing notices,
attorneys' fees, printing costs, trustees' fees for

fiscal agents, and similar expenses) will be $20
million . . ." (emphasis adied)
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The example is illuminating not only in demonstrating
that Treasury itself recognizes that the "substantially all" test
applies not to the face amount of a bond issue but to the proceeds
to the issuer after deducting expenses related to the issuance of
the bonds but it demonstrates that Treasury also recognizes that
attorneys' fees and trustees' fees are part of these issuance
expenses. Haswell, like Treasury, so recognized them in preparing
his tax opinions. The Commission does not, but gives no reasons.
(SEC Br. 24)

Incidentally, Haswell does not quarrel with the Commis-
sion's position that at least 90% of the proceeds should be devoted
to qualifying uses to satisfy the "substantially all” test. This
percentage appeared no place in the Code or the regulations in
1972, the year of the opinions involved, and did not appear until
1975, when it appeared in the regulations. Nevertheless, in the
many examples in the Treasury regulations related to the many
classes of tax exempt bonds recited in Section 103 of the Code, the
test consistently applied by the Treasury was and is 90%. Haswell
in 1972 observed this 90% gloss of the Treasury Department, as will
be seen later.

The second difference between the Commission's and
Haswell's interpretation of 26 U.S.C. 103(b)(6)(A) is whether
interest payments esérowed for payment to bondholders during the
start-up period - the installation or construction period -can be

deemed to be used for gqualifying purposes, that is
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". . . used (i) for the acquisition, construction,

reconstruction, or improvement of land or property

of a character subject to the allowance for depre-

ciation, or (ii) to redeem part or all of a prior

issue which was used for purposes described in

clause (i) or this clause."
Haswell contends such escrowed interest payments are qualifying
uses, and the Commission takes the position they are not qualifying
uses if the taxpayer (i.e., WSP, L&H and BII) does not elect to
capitalize such payments on its books but, rather, expenses them
for its income tax purposes (SEC Br., p. 24-5, footnotes 43 and
45).

The Commission cites no authority for its position. It
cannot., There is none. The truth is, at the time Haswell wrote his

three tax opinions there were no requlations on the subject. On

June 5, 1971 - i,e., before the three tax opinions were written by
Haswell - Treasury proposed a regulation on point and adopted it
with some revisions on August 3, 1972 - i.e., after Baswell's tax
opinions were written. This requlation, Regulation 1,103-
10(b) (2) (ii) (e), confirms the position Haswell took with respect to
treating the escrow of interest payments for the start-up installa-
tion and construction period as a qualifying use under 26 U.S.C.
103(b) (6) (p).

Such regulation deals with what qualifies as a "capital
expenditure® during the three years before and the three years

after the issuance of bonds for purposes of calculating the $5
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million limitation set forth in 26 U.S.C. 103(b) (6) (D). These are
the expenditures to which the "substantially all™ test applied.
Such regulation provides, in pertinent part, as follows:

". . . an expenditure (regardless of how paid,
whether in cash, notes or stock in a taxable or
nontaxable transaction) is a Section 103(b) (6) (D)
capital expenditure if -

* * * * *

" (e) The capital expenditures were properly
chargeable to the capital account of any person
. « . determined, for this purpose, without regard
to any rule of the Code which permits expenditures
properly chargeable to capital account to be trested
as current expenses. With respect to obligations
issued on or after August 8, 1972, determinations
under the preceding section shall be made by
including any expenditure which may, under any rule
or election under the Code, be treated as a capital
expenditure (whether or not such expenditure is so
treated)."” (Emphasis added)

What this Regulation says is that if WSP, L&B or HII
could have capitalized the escrowed installation and construction
period interest payments, they must treat such payments as capital

expenditures for Section 103 purposes even if they elected not to

capitalize them but, instead, to expense them. The three companies
all had such an election to either expense or capitalize these
payments by reason of 26 U.S.C. 266 and Regulation 1l.266-1(a),
(b) (1) (ii), and (iii). What elections they made are immaterial.
The third difference between the Commission's and

Haswell's interpretation of 26 U.S.C. 103(b)(6) (A) 1is the effect
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of Haswell's having rendered a favorable tax opinion and drafted a
lease agreement for the L&H bond issue which involved the following
application of the net proceeds received from the sale of the
bonds: MODA paid the net proceeds to L&H in consideration of (i) a
bill of sale for L&H's interest in equipment already installed in
and leasehold improvements earlier made to MODA's facility and (ii)

L&H's covenant to use such net proceeds to acquire and construct,

during the next three years, the capital assets adequate for the
needs of L&H in manufacturing its products. (A. 502) No construc-
tion fund was provided to insure that L&H would so use such net
proceeds. In fact, L&H immediately used most of the net proceeds to
pay off existing indebtedness and for working capital, and MODA and
Haswell were aware this would likely bs the immediate use of the
proceeds. (A. 147-8)

Haswell's L&H tax opinion was grounded importantly upon a
covenant given by L&H. The use of covenants in tax-exempt bond
financing is widely employed and recognized. For example, any of
the many categories of Section 103 bonds may lose tax-exempt status
if, except for a temporary period - generally, the installation or
construction period, the bond proceeds are expected to be invested
in other obligations with materially higher yields. Prop. Reg.
1.103-13 and 14, published June 1, 1972. 1In such case, the bonds
became taxable "arbitrage bonds." 26 U.S.C. 103(c)(2). One month

after Haswell wrote his L&H tax opinion based upon the use of a
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covenant, the Treasury Department proposed regulations recognizing
that what would otherwise appear to be arbitrage bonds will not be
deemed to be so if the issuing authority provides its covenant that
it will make no use of the bond proceeds that would cause the bonds
to be <classified as arbitrage bonds. Prop. Reg. 1.103-
13(a) (2)(iii), proposed June 1, 1972 and set forth in the Appendix
attached to this Brief.

Admittedly, the covenant technique wused to defeat
classification of bonds as arbitrage bonds is not precisely on
point and was not even proposed by Treasury until a month after
Haswell rendered his L&H tax opinion. But he testified that at the
time he rendered his L&H bond opinions he was already aware of the
pending proposed regulation by having attended a professional
seminar given by the very person who was drafting the proposed
regulation for Treasury. (A. 154-5)

He also had learned at this seminar that the proposed
regulation was going to recognize a three-year (and longer in some
instances) period within which bond proceeds could be invested in
other obligations with materially higher yields before employment
of the proceeds for the uses for which they has been obtained.

He also had before him the statutory language of Section
103 (b) (6) (D) which recognized a three-year period after a bond
issuance for accounting for capital expenditures for the purpose of
increasing from $1,000,000 to $5,000,000 the exemption for small

issue industrial development bonds.
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Based upon the foregoing knowledge of statutory law and
of requlations soon to be proposed that recognized temporary other
uses of bond proceeds for three years and employed covenants to
protect tax exempt status, Haswell concluded it would be permiss-
ible to allow L&H to make other uses of the L&H bond issue for three
years provided L&H covenanted to acquire during such period capital
assets in an amount substantially egual to the bond proceeds.

It may be - without suggesting that it is so - that
Haswell was wrong. If so, this is the first forum in which his
judgment has been challenged. Inde=d, for the purposes of this
proceeding it is not even necessary to determine whether he was
correct or not, something the trial judge recognized. (A. 838)
What is material here, a civil injunction proceeding looking to the

future, 1is whether Haswell honestly rendered his three MODA

opinions.

In this respect, there is little in the record to support
the Commission's statement (SEC Br. 27) that "Haswell knew, there
was little likelihood that L&H . . . would be able to purchase,
within three years, the substantial amount of equipment it was
required to purchase under the terms of the leases drafted by
Haswell." Haswell was aware of L&H's distressed financial position
but testified he was also aware at the time that L&H was contemplat-
ing cutting its production costs by developing its own frame and

lathe turning facilities, that L&H was discussing with MODA the
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leasing of another building for that purpose, that such would place
L&H in a position to increase its productive facilities, and
perhaps that L&H was considering acquiring its own transportation
rolling stock to furéher cut its costs. (A. 158-9) He did not,
however, regard it as his duty to make an economic evaluation of L&H
or make financial judgments with respect to L&H's future earnings
abilities; he directed his inquiry toward L&H's business intentions
for the next three years. (A. 159-60)

Perhaps he should have insisted upon being provided an
expertly prepared economic evaluation of L&H's earnings ability
after the infusion into it of the proceeds of the bond issuance. It
is submitted that the sole issue before the Court is whether such
failure amounted to fraudulent or culpably reckless conduct. The
trial judge, who heard Haswell's testimony and weighed the evi-
dence, found Haswell's defense of his bond opinions "most convin-
cing,"” that the bond opinions were "carefully considered opinions
and, whether right or wrong, were made in good faith," and that
"Haswell's opinions were neither negligently nor recklessly
reached.” (A. 838) It is submitted the record contains a
amplitude of evidence to support this finding by the trier of
facts.

b. Even if Haswell's tax opinions were incorrect, since he

honestly rendered them, his actions do not constitute aiding and

abetting a violation of Section 5 of the 1933 Act.
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The Commission, on page 63 of its Brief, notes that the
three bond issues in question could not have been marketed without
a tax opinion of counsel. The Commission then states that, by
issuing tax opinions which he knew or should have known were false,
Haswell violated and aided and abetted violations of Section 5 of
the 1933 Act.

It should be noted that the Commissions's position is
that Haswell "knew or should have known" that his tax opinions were
false. It is here conceded that, if such were the case - and this
is contrary to the trial judge's findings - the Commission would be
correct. In fact, an attornéy who issues tax opinions which he
knows or should know are false not only violates Section 5 of the
1933 Act but also violates the anti-fraud provisions of the 1933
and 1934 Acts, due to the presence of scienter or culpably reckless
conduct.

The important point here 1is, the Commission is not
arquing or taking the position that a negligent rendering of an
incorrect tax opinion makes a bond counsel an aider and abettor of
the registration provisions of the 1933 Act. It is acknowledged
that the correctness of Haswell's three tax opinions is subject to
honest debate by lawyers, This Court may possible conclude that
his opinions were, in fact, incorrect and the result of poor judg-
ment. But the Commission itself has limited the scope of this

appeal to whether the fraudulent or culpably reckless, as
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distinguished from the negligent, rendering of a tax opinion is the
basis for injunctive relief. Haswell does not quarrel with the
Commission's theory; he contends only that the evidence amply
demonstrates that he carefully and honestly rendered his opinions
and that there is an absence of fraudulent or culpably reckless
conduct on his part.
III. THE TRIAL JUDGE DID NOT ERR IN REFUSING TO ENJOIN HASWELL
FROM VIOLATING FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS BASED ON ITS

CONCLUSION THAT THERE WAS NO LIKELIROOD OF FUTURE
VIOLATIONS.

The trial judge concluded that Haswell had not violated
the federal securities laws as charged. The court went on to state
that "even if Haswell had violated the federal securities laws, the
permanent injunction sought by the Commission should be denied
under the circumstances."™ (aA. 839)

The trial judge cited with approval the statement in

S.E.C. v. Manor Nursing Centers, Inc., 458 F.2d 1082 at 1100 (2nd

Cir. 1972):

The critical gquestion for a district court in

deciding whether to issue a permanent injunction in

view of past violations is whether there 1is a

reasonable 1likelihood that the wrong will be

repeated.

The trial judge noted that Haswell had issued many other
opinions in the five years since the three MODA bond issues in
question, all of which opinions were furnished to the court by
Haswell, that the activities of Haswell complained of by the

Commission had occurred more than five years in the past, that
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since such time Haswell had been counsel in dozens of bond issues in
which there had been no showing of wrong doing, that the Commission
had found no fault nor alleged any violations with respect to
actions taken or bond opinions rendered by Haswell subsequent to
July of 1972, that Haswell had been employed by many prestigious
underwriters, issuers and public authorities during the past
several years and that the court had examined such work and found it
to be scholarly and of very high quality. The court found no
evidence to support the inference, urged by the Commission, that
Haswell is 1likely to commit a future violation of the federal
securities laws. (A. 839-40)

The Commission seeks an injunction against Haswell in
this proceeding pursuant to the authority of Section 20(b) of the
1933 Act and Section 21(d) of the 1934 Act which authorize such
proceedings whenever it shall appear to the Commission that any
person "is engaged or about to engage" in any act which constitutes
a violation of the securities laws or rules or regulations there-
under. Unless there is evidence that a person "is engaged or about
to be engaged" in violations of the federal securities law, the
Commission must demonstrate that the person's "past behavior gives
indication that without injunctive measures he might again engage

in such activities." S.E.C. v, Management Dynamics, Inc., 515 F.2d

801 at 807 (2nd Cir. 1975).
In considering this question, the Supreme Court has

stated:
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The necessary determination is that there exists
some cognizable danger of recurrent violation,
something more than the mere possibility which
serves to keep the case alive. U.S. v. W. T. Grant
Co., 345 U.S. 629 at 633 (1953) (Emphasis added)

The Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit has described

the standard as follows:

The critical question for a district court in
deciding whether to issue a permanent injunction in
view of past violations is whether there is a
reasonable 1likelihood that the wrong will be
repeated. SEC v. Pearson, 426 F. 24 1339 at 1343
(10th Cir. 1970). (Emphasis added) :

There is no quarrel with the Commission's theory that a
past violation by a person creates an inference that a reasonable
likelihood exists that such person, unless restrained by a perma-
nent injunction, will commit future violations. But inferences can
be rebutted. And the evidence in this case has amply rebutted any
inference that may arise from any conduct of Haswell in 1972.

The Commission also argues that where a defendant refuses
to appreciate the wrongfullness of his prior conduct and makes no
claim that there have been any significant changes in circum-
stances, the showing of a past violation of the federal securities
laws is sufficient basis for the imposition of injunctive relief.
It is true that Haswell believes that his bond opinions were
legally correct and defensible at the time they were rendered and
that he did not violate the federal securities laws. He does

acknowledge that his performance of legal duties in the early part
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of 1972 is subject to honest debate on the charge that he may have
exercised poor judgment. The record does show, however, that
Haswell has a most positive and respectful attitude toward the
securities laws. During the entire, several years investigation of
this matter by the Commission, Haswell cooperated fully with the
Commission. The Commission has stipulated this to be true.
(A, 97-8)

In sum, the Commission's entire case for an injunction
rests upon inferences to be drawn from conduct that occurred five
years in the past plus Haswell's present refusal to confess to the
Commission's charges. Surely any inferences that can reasonably be
drawn therefrom are rebutted by the better than five years of
unblemished legal performance by Haswell in the securities and tax
law fields and the fact that his subsequent and present performance
- all fully revealed to and reviewed by the Commission and the
trial judge - has not been and is not being questioned. Such
unblemished subsequent performance was the basis for a decision to
deny injunctive relief in a much stronger case, one in which
scienter was found on the part of attorneys, in S.E.C. v. National

Student Marketing Corp., CCH Fed. Sec. L. Rep., para. 94,175 (D.C.

of D.C. 1977)

CONCLUSION

The purpose of an injunction is to prevent present or

future violations of the law. The moving party must satisfy the
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Court that the relief is needed. The necessary determination is
that there exists some likelihood or cognizable danger of present
or future violations. The Court's decision is based upon all of the
circumstances: his discretion is necessarily broad and a strong

showing of abuse must be made to reverse it. United States v. W. T.

Grant & Company, 345 U.S. 629, 73 S.Ct. 894 (1953) and S.E.C. V.

Manor Nursing Centers, Inc., 458 F.2d 1082 (24 Cir. 1972).

Here there 1is an abundance of evidence and 1legal
authority which support the findings and judgment of the trial
judge. Indeed, the evidence 1is unrefuted that there is neither
"some cognizable danger" nor "a reasonable likelihood" of a present
or future violation by Haswell. The Commission even has admitted
it has examined Haswell's work product for the five-year period
since the actions complained of herein and that it found no viola-
tions. (A. 67-68 and 70)

Finally, there is no basis for the charge by the Commis-
sion that Judge Bohanon was either hostile toward or prejudiced
against the Commission.

Respectfully submitted,
’ . y T
[ S G
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APPENDIX OF PROPOSED TREASURY REGULATIONS
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Prop. Regs. §1.103-13, 14, Published June 1, 1972
(Fed. Reg. No. 1086, June1 1972, pp. 10946109::6)

DEPARTHIENT OF THE
TREASURY

Internal Revenue Service
[ 25 CFR Part 11
INCOME TAX

R

Internal Revenue Sarvice
[ 26 CFR Port 11
INCOME TAX
Arbitrage Bonds

Notice Is he: reby given thzt the regula-
tiors set forth in tentative Torm in the
attachied appecdix are propesed to be
prescribed by tbe Commiss sner of In-
ternal Revenue, with tha apz-rovaj of the
Secretary of the Treasusy or his dele-
gate. Pror to the final adzpscn of such
regulatiors, consideration w1 be given
to any comments cr sugzesions pertain-
ing thereto which are sus—:tied in writ-
Ln" (preferably six copies) te tke Com-
missioner of In‘ermal RBevenus, Atten-~
tion: CC:LR:T, Washington, D.C. 20224,
by July 25. 1872. Any wr:ttem comments
or suggestions not specilcally designated
as confidential In a2ccordarce with 26
CIR 601.601(b) may te inspected by any
perscn upon written request..Any per-
son submitiing written comments or sug-
gestions who decires an opportumity to
comment orally at a publie kearing on
these proposed regu'atons should submit
his request, in writdrcg, t¢ the Commis-
sioner by July 25, 1972. A pudlic bearing
will be held, and police of the time,
place, and date is gmultareously pub-
lished herewith. The proposed regula-
tions are to b2 lssued uncder the su-
thority contalred jn sectians 103(d)
and 7825 of the Intermal Reveaus Code
of 1954 (83 Stat. 656, 6BA Stat. 317; 28
U.S.C. 103, 7303).

{searl JOHNNIZ AL TVALTIRS,
Commissioner of Interr-al Rerzaue.

In order to conform the Iacome Tax
regzulations (26 CFR Part 1) to certain
amendments rcada to the Internzl Reve-
nue Code of 1954 by secticn 5C1(a) of the
Tax Reform Act of 1963 (83 Stat. 658),

relating to arbitrage bards, such regula-

tions are hereby armended as set forth -

belcw. Section 1.103-13 of the regula-
tions hereby adopted superseces the
provisions of § 13.4 of this chapter which
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were prescribed by T.D. 7072, asproved
Novercber 7, 1370, ard published in the
Feorral Rrcister for Novemter 13, 1570
(35 FR. 17406).

‘Paracrarr 1. Sectiom
amended to read as follows:

1.103-1 s

§ 1.103—1 Tntereat vpun oblizations of
a State, Territory, ete.
. . . . »

(b) Obligations issued by or on behzal! |
of any State or loca! governmernlal unit .
by constituted authorities empoxersd to
issue such obligations are the obligaticns
of such a unit. However, secticn 1G3(a)
(1) end this sestion do not apply to in-
dustrial development bonds except as
otherwise provided in section 103{¢), or
to arbitrage bonds except as or-erwise
provided in sectian 103(d). Ses sac-
tion 103(c) and §§1.303-7 through
1.163-12 for the ru'les concerning inter-
est paid on industrial develepmernt bonds,
See section 103(d) ard §§ 1.103-i3 and
1.103-14 for the rules concerning iSter-
est paid on arbitrage bonds. Certifizates
tssued by a political subdivision for pub-
lic improvements (such 2s sewers. nide-

walks, stieeis, ele.) which are evidance
of <peczal ascessments agzainst speciic
property, which assessments beco:e 2
len against such property and which ths
political subdivision is required to en-
force, are, for pwposes of this sect
oblizations of the political su::divis:’cn
even thouzh the obligations are 0 be
satisfied out of szecial fimds and not out
of general funds or taxes. For pu-pcses
of this section, the term "political sub-
division” denotes any division of zny.
Sta:e or local governmental unit which
is a municipal corporation, or to which
has been delegated the right o exeriise
part of the sovereign power of the it
As thus defined, a political subdivision of
any Stateorlocel goveromental unit may
or may zot iczlude special acsezsment
districts so created. such as road, water,
sewer, gas, light, reclamation, drainage,
irrization. levee, school, hartor, pert im-
provement. and similar districts and di-
visions of any such unit.

Par. 2. There ere inserted {romediately
after §1.103-12 the following new sec-
tions:

§1.103-13  .Arbitrage bonds.

() Scope—{1) In general. Under s+¢-
tion 103:d) (1), any arbitrage bond shall
be treated as an obligation not descnbed




in section 103(a) (1) and §1.103-1. Thus,
the tnterest oo an arbitrage bond will he
included in gross iccome and subject to
Federal income taxation. In general, ar-
bitrage bonds are ohligatons issusd by
8 Stiate or local gerermmental unit, the
preeceeds of which sre reasonably cx-
pected to be tsed to acquire other obliga-
tions where the yield on such acquired
obligetHons will be materzzll7 higher than
the yisld on the governmenzal obliga-
tions. The term “arbitrage bond” is de-
fined in paragraph (b (1) of tkis section.

Tader paragraph (3) of §1.103-14, the
investment of all or a portion of the pro-
ecaeds of an izsue of obligaticns for a tew-
porzaty period or periods will not cause
such oblisations to ba arbitrage bords re-
gzrdless of the yield produced by such
Insesiments Similarly, under parmagraph
(2) 0of § 1.103-14, the iInvestmentcf a por-
tion of the proceeds as a reasonzbly re-
qQuired reserta or replacement fund will
net causce such odliyations to be arbitraze
bonds regarciess of the yield produced by
such investments Even if an obligation
is not an arbitrage bond wnder section
103(d), such bond may nevertheless be
treated 2as an obligation whish is not
described in  section 103(a)(1) and
§£1.103-1 if it s az industrial deveiop-
ment bond under cection 103(e), For reg-
ulations as to specizl issues of Fedsral
Treasury obligations offered to State gngd
local govermmental units, see 31 CFR
Part 344.

(2) Rensonable expectetions—() Un-
der section 103(d)(2), the determina-
tion whelier zn obligaticn is an
~arhitraze bond” depends upon the rez-
sonadie expectztions, as of the date of
the iziue, with respect to the uses to be
-made of the proceeds of the issue. Thus,
an otligation s potan arkitrage bond i
it is reasonakly expecied on the c¢ote of
issue that the proceeds of e iszu2 will
nGt be used in 2 mxanner that would
causa the olligzlions to bte *arkitrage
bonds" under sectiom 102(dV¢2), this
secticn,-and §1.103-14. Except ss pro=
vided in subdivision (iv; of this sub-
parasrayh, the reasonable expectations
with rescect (o the use of the proceeds
of & poverzmental ctlization =ay be
estabiithed by eilther of the methods
deecnbed in subdivicions (i) or (i) of
this subparazraph.

(i) A Staleorloczlgoveramesxtal unit
may certify, in the bord incdeztwe or a
related documert, that oa the bzsis of
tne facts and circumstances in exzcience
on the date ¢f issue, and s2i forth in
such indenture or related documents, it

-58~-

is £ot expected that the proceeds of the
j’is'ue or-p:bu;:::'o:.s wil be used in a
marner that would cause such cbdliga-
tiors $0 be arbitraze bonds. This expec-
tation wil] be deeme? rezsorzlble urless
1t would be clear, Lo 2 Tesscnably prudent
pesson bating the dagres €f expertise
possessed by bend conrmsel, undarwriters,
or other persoas Lavizg specizlized’
knowledge in such Heids, that such ex-

pectzbon is not reescacblis. A certifica-
tion by the issuer under this subdivision

is bot aZected by subsaquent events

which cou'd not bz2ve been reassnzbdly |
especied on the cdate of issue by cuch
areascozblyprudest sersan,

(ili) Altermativelr, the State or loczl
goveramental unit =2y establish a rea-
sonzhle expectation by a covenedy, tothe
purchasers of the obligations containes
iIn the'bood Indenture o- a relzted docu-
ment, that the icsuer wiii maXks no use
of the proceeds cf ar issu= of ohligaticas
which, i{ such use kad o=en reasoncbly
expected on the date of issue of suzh
obiigations, would have ceused such
obligatiors th be atbitszcge boads. The
covenant must impese 2= oblization en
tae issuer to compls with the raquire-
ments of section 103(c&>, this secticn,
and §1.103-14, threosooot the terz of
the icsue. Thus, for exz=mple, the State
or local governmental =it may esteh.
lich a reescnable erxpectzSon usder this
suodivision where th2 fzcts eod circume-
stances es of the ¢2le of issus sce pot
suSciently clezr for a cersScation under
subdivision (i) of ixis suZpzaragraph.

(iv) Tke Ccmmiszioner may give no-
tice Ly publication in thie Intammz] Peve-
nue Bulletin that the stziexments of cer-
tification cr tbe covenants of a State or
local goveramental unit may oot be
relied upon with respect to issuzs ¢f gov-
enuzental obligetions to ke issued by it
subssquent to the date of publizatsn of
such notice. If such notice has besp pub-
lished, neither the certifention 2s Lo spe-
cific expectations dascribed in subdivi-
tion (i)Y cf thls subparagTaph, nor the
covenant descrited in rmbdivirien (G
of this subpzragraph, mar ba relied vpen
with respect to eny ohliga=ons issued by
«the State gr local goversmential pnit aer
the date of such notice uriess it is estad-
Lished pricr to the date of 2ny subsequent |
iszue $o the satisfacticn of the Ceramis-
sioner or his delezate that sueh ceriifica- -
tion or cerenant may be refizd upon. No
State or local govermmental umit skhall -
be Usted in such notice unless the unit:
hzs been zdvised that such a Bsiing is
conterrplzied 2nd sush r—it has been |
given an crportinily to coosu't thereon |
with the-Commissioner or Xis deiegzle. ‘

|
|

() Efcctive datc. The provisions of
secticn 1031d) apply with respect to ob-
ligations iscued after October 9, 12£8.
S=¢ paragTaph (L) (7r of Lals secuica for
defnition of the term “dzze of issue™



